
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

Contact Officer:
Nicola Gittins 01352 702345

To: Julia Hughes (Chair)

Councillors: Teresa Carberry, Andrew Parkhurst and Antony Wren

Co-opted Members:
David Wynn Davies, Jacqueline Guest, Mark Morgan, Gill Murgatroyd and Ian 
Papworth

28 November 2023

Dear Sir/Madam

NOTICE OF REMOTE MEETING
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 4TH DECEMBER, 2023 at 6.00 PM

Yours faithfully

Steven Goodrum
Democratic Services Manager

The meeting will be live streamed onto the Council’s website.  The live streaming will 
stop when any confidential items are considered.  A recording of the meeting will 
also be available, shortly after the meeting at https://flintshire.public-
i.tv/core/portal/home

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact a member of the Democratic 
Services Team on 01352 702345.

Public Document Pack

https://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://flintshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


2

A G E N D A

1 APOLOGIES 
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS) 
Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 ADOPTION OF PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH A REPORT 
REFERRED BY THE PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES 
(PSOW) REGARDING ALLEGATIONS OF BREACH OF A CODE OF 
CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS. (Pages 3 - 20)
Purpose: For the Committee to consider and adopt a procedure for 

dealing with reports referred by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) as there currently isn’t one in 
place.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO 
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 12 of 
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

The report relates to a particular individual and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

4 PRELIMINARY MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PUBLIC SERVICES 
OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES (PSOW) INTO AN ALLEGED BREACH OF 
THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS. (Pages 21 - 556)
Purpose: To consider a referral from the PSOW relating to an alleged 

breach of the Code of Conduct and determine either: there is 
no evidence of any failure to comply with the Code of Conduct; 
or that the Councillor who was the subject of the complaint 
should be given the opportunity to make representations to the 
Committee either orally or in writing in respect of the findings of 
the investigation.

Please note that there may be a 10 minute adjournment of this meeting if it 
lasts longer than two hours



G:3484008v2

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Monday 4th December 2023

Report Subject Adoption of Procedure for dealing with a report referred 
by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales regarding  
allegations of breach of a Code of Conduct for Members

Report Author Legal Services Manager

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Standards Committee is responsible for dealing with reports that are referred 
to the Council’s Monitoring Officer by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 
under section 69 of the Local Government Act 2000. Such a referral is made after 
the Ombudsman has carried out an investigation into, and has concluded that 
there is evidence of, an alleged breach of the authority’s code of conduct for 
members.

When the Standards Committee receives a report, it must deal with such a report 
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Investigations 
(Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 
2001.

The Standards Committee does not currently have a procedure for dealing with 
reports that are referred to it for determination. The Council has received a report 
from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales and is referring this to the 
Standards Committee for determination. The Standards Committee therefore 
needs to adopt a procedure to deal with the immediate report and for any reports 
that may be referred to the Standards Committee in the future.

The appendix to this report sets out a recommended procedure.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 The Standards Committee agrees to adopt the procedure set out in 
Appendix 1 to this report for dealing with reports regarding alleged 
breaches of a local authority’s code of conduct for members.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



G:3484008v2

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 THE NEED TO ADOPT A PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH A REPORT 
FOR DEALING WITH A REPORT REFERED BY THE PUBLIC SERVICES 
OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES REGARDING ALLEGATIONS OF BREACH 
OF A CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS

1.01 The Standards Committee is responsible for dealing with reports that are 
referred to the Council’s Monitoring Officer by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales (“the Ombudsman”) under section 69 of the Local 
Government Act 2000. When the Standards Committee receives a referral, 
it must deal with such a report in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and 
Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001.

1.02 Regulation 8 of the Local Government Investigations (Functions of 
Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001 
says that, subject to any express provision in those Regulations or in the 
Standards Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001, it is for a local 
authority’s Standards Committee to decide on the practice and procedure 
to be followed in exercising functions under those Regulations. The 
Standards Committee therefore need to decide on the procedure that it will 
be used.

1.03 A referral has been received so the Standards Committee needs to decide 
on the procedure that will be used.

1.04 A recommended procedure is set out at Appendix 1 to this report.

2.00 KEY PROVISIONS OF THE PROPOSED PROCEDURE

2.01 The proposed procedure has been prepared to ensure that it meets the 
requirements of the Local Government Investigations (Functions of 
Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001 
plus the rules of natural justice and European Convention on Human 
Rights. It makes provision for the member who is the subject of a report to 
receive a fair hearing and for an allegation to be comprehensively and 
reasonably considered by the Standards Committee. It covers all practical 
details that will need to be addressed in dealing with a report from the 
Ombudsman. Key provisions contained in the procedure include:

2.02 Initial Determination

When a report is referred to the Standards Committee, the Committee is 
required to make an initial determination that either:

1. There is no evidence of any failure to comply with the Code of 
Conduct; or

2. That the member who is the subject of the Ombudsman’s 
investigation should be given the opportunity to make 

Page 4



G:3484008v2

representations to the Committee either orally or in writing in 
respect of the findings of the investigation.

This is not a determination as to whether there is a breach of the Code of 
Conduct nor is it a hearing of the evidence.  The only decision for the 
Standards Committee to make is whether there is no evidence of a breach.  

Usual principles of good decision making apply so the Standards 
Committee must have regard to all relevant information. This is likely to 
include observation within the Ombudsman’s report as to whether there is 
any indication of possible breach of the Code of Conduct and any 
evidence appended to the report.  It is not considered that the Standards 
Committee will require any additional evidence or submission from the 
subject member or the Ombudsman at this stage.

2.03 Arrangements for communicating with the member and dealing with the 
member’s response

The procedure requires officers to notify the subject member of the 
Standards Committee’s initial determination and ask the subject member 
to confirm if they wish to make written or oral representations.

Depending on the subject member’s response, officers will either report to 
the Standards Committee that the subject member does not wish to make 
representations or will make arrangements for the Committee to receive 
the subject member’s representations. If the member wishes to make 
representations, those arrangements will include a hearing.

2.04 Arrangements prior to the hearing

The procedure sets out details for liaising with the member and the 
Ombudsman prior to hearing to confirm their expectations regarding 
practical arrangements for the hearing and their availability.

The procedure also makes provision for checking the availability and 
eligibility of members to attend a hearing.

2.05 Requirement for training

The procedure includes a requirement for members of the Standards 
Committee who are going to participate in a hearing to have attended 
training provided or approved by Flintshire County Council on the subject 
of dealing with a report referred by the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales regarding allegations of breach of a code of conduct for members 
and that training was no longer ago than one year before the date of the 
relevant hearing.

This requirement has been included for the purpose of good governance, 
as it is important to effective decision making that all persons who 
participate in a hearing to have the same level of understanding about the 
decisions that they are required to take.

Page 5



G:3484008v2

However, it is recognised that this requirement may on occasion cause 
practical difficulty in arranging a hearing. In order to be quorate, a meeting 
of the Standards Committee requires attendance of at least three 
members of the Committee and at least half of these must be independent 
members. If a hearing deals with an allegation relating to a member of a 
town or community council, one of the members of the Standards 
Committee participating in the hearing must be a town or community 
representative. Therefore, there is provision in the procedure for the 
requirement for training to be waived if the Standards Committee 
considers that it would otherwise be impracticable for the Standards 
Committee to conduct a hearing.

2.06 Pre-Hearing Review

The procedure makes provision for the subject member, the Ombudsman 
or the Standards Committee to request a pre-hearing review to consider 
any practical details which need to be addressed in advance of the 
hearing.

2.07 Notice of Hearing

Notice of the hearing will be given in accordance with the statutory 
requirements relating to notice of the Council’s committee meetings.

2.08 Legal Support

The Council will provide legal and democratic services support to the 
Standards Committee. The legal support will usually be provided by the 
Monitoring Officer but the Monitoring Officer may arrange for support to be 
provided by another officer of the Council or by external legal advisers.

2.09 Access to Information

The Standards Committee will need to decide whether any part of the pre-
hearing process or the hearing itself should take place without the press 
and public being present.  The procedure envisages that:

1. Meetings where the Standards Committee is required to make an 
initial determination in respect of report on an alleged breach of the 
Code of Conduct and pre-hearing review will be held in private. 
Under paragraphs 12 and 18A of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972.  Such meetings will contain 
information that is exempt from public access because it is 
information relating to a particular individual and because reports 
from the Ombudsman are provided in confidence for all purposes 
except the hearing itself. 

2. The procedure also provides that exclusion of the public will include 
any member of Flintshire County Council who is not a member of 
the Standards Committee, because it contains personal data. 

3. The actual hearing will usually be in public in accordance with the 
subject member’s right to a fair hearing under Article 6 of the 

Page 6



G:3484008v2

European Convention on Human Rights.  The Ombudsman or 
accused councillor may request for all or parts of the hearing to take 
place in private having regard to the sensitivity of evidence to be 
heard, and such applications will be considered on a case by case 
basis.

2.10 Failure of a party to attend a hearing

If a party to the hearing fails to attend after having been given notice of a 
hearing, the procedure allows the Standards Committee to make a 
decision in the absence of that party or to adjourn the hearing if the 
Standards Committee decides that there is a good reason for the party’s 
absence.
 

2.11 The Hearing

The procedure sets out how the Standards Committee will approach:
 Preliminary matters
 Determining the facts
 Determining whether the facts demonstrate a breach of the 

Code of Conduct
 Deciding on a sanction

2.12 Written Decision

The procedure says that the Standards Committee will use reasonable 
endeavours to announce its decisions on the same day that the hearing 
ends but that a full written decision with reasons will be issued within 10 
working days of the end of the hearing and notified to the Ombudsman and 
the subject member.

2.13 Appeals

The procedure notes that if a member is found to have breached the Code 
of Conduct, that member will have a right of appeal to the Adjudication 
Panel for Wales against the decisions of the Standards Committee in 
accordance with the Local Government Investigations (Functions of 
Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 
2001.

2.14 Report of the outcome of the investigation

The procedure requires the Standards Committee to arrange for a report 
on the outcome of the investigation to be produced and distributed and 
publicised in accordance with the Local Government Investigations 
(Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) 
Regulations 2001.

Page 7



G:3484008v2

3.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.01 There are no resource implications associated with the adoption of the 
procedure but any action taken by the Standards Committee to deal with 
reports referred to it will require the Council to commit officer time and 
other resources.

4.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

4.01 None.

5.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

5.01 No risk management requirements arising directly from this report.

6.00 APPENDICES

6.01 Appendix 1 – Procedure for dealing with a report referred by the Public 
Services Ombudsman for Wales regarding allegations of breach of a Code 
of Conduct for Members.

7.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

7.01 Procedure for dealing with a report referred by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales regarding  allegations of breach of a code of 
conduct for members annexed to this report

Local Government Act 2000

Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers 
and Standards Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001

Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 2001

Contact Officer: Matt Powell, Legal Services Manager
Telephone: 01352 702354
E-mail: matthew.powell@flintshire.nwalescls.com 

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Code of Conduct for Members – The code of conduct that local 
authorities are required by the Local Government Act 2000 to adopt to 
govern the conduct of their members.

Page 8

mailto:matthew.powell@flintshire.nwalescls.com


G:3484008v2

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales – the person who holds the 
office of Public Services Ombudsman for Wales, established under the 
Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2019 and has power under the 
Local Government Act 2000 to investigate allegations that a member or 
co-opted member or former member or co-opted member has breached 
the Code of Conduct for members.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



G:3378266v2

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
COMPLAINT REFERRED BY THE PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES: 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE PROCEDURE

This document sets out the procedure for the Standards Committee to follow in reaching  
decisions regarding complaints alleging breach of the Code of Conduct by members of 
Flintshire County Council and members of the town and community councils within Flintshire., 
which are referred to the Monitoring Officer or Legal Services Manager by the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales (“the Ombudsman”).

1. Background

1.1 The Ombudsman has power under section 69 of the Local Government Act 2000 to 
investigate cases of written allegations that a current or former councillor or co-opted 
member of Flintshire County Council or of a town or community council within Flintshire 
has failed to comply with the authority's code of conduct. The Ombudsman can likewise 
investigate where she considers that a current or former councillor or co-opted member  
may have failed, to comply with the authority's code of conduct due to information 
arising as a result of an investigation.

1.2 Having carried out an investigation, the Ombudsman may make one of the following 
findings:

(a) That there is no evidence of any failure to comply with the code of conduct of 
the relevant authority concerned,

(b) That no action needs to be taken in respect of the matters which are the subject 
of the investigation,

(c) That the matters which are the subject of the investigation should be referred 
to the Monitoring Officer, or

(d) That the matters which are the subject of the investigation should be referred 
to the president of the Adjudication Panel for Wales for adjudication by a 
tribunal falling within section 76(1) of the Local Government Act 2000.

1.3 When a report of the Ombudsman is referred to the Monitoring Officer, the Monitoring 
Officer is required by the Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring 
Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to make the initial 
determination referred to in section 2 of this procedure.

1.4 Regulation 8 of the Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers 
and Standards Committees (Wales) Regulations 2001 says that, subject to any 
express provision in those Regulations or in the Standards Committees (Wales) 
Regulations 2001, it is for a local authority’s standards committee to decide on the 
practice and procedure to be followed in exercising functions under those Regulations.

1.5 This procedure sets out the procedure to be followed by the Standards Committee in 
making the initial determination and in taking actions following its initial determination. 
It covers:

(a) The initial determination

(b) The Subject Member’s Response

Page 11



G:3378266v2

(c) Arrangements prior to the hearing

(d) Requirement for training

(e) Pre-Hearing Review

(f) Notice of Hearing

(g) Legal Support

(h) Access to Information

(i) Failure of a party to attend a hearing

(j) The Hearing

(k) Written Decision

(l) Appeals

(m) Report of the outcome of the investigation

2. Initial Determination

2.1 The Standards Committee must make an initial determination that either: 
there is no evidence of any failure to comply with the Code of Conduct; or 
that the member who is the subject of the Ombudsman’s investigation (“the 
subject member”) should be given the opportunity to make representations 
to the Committee either orally or in writing in respect of the findings of the 
investigation.

2.2 If the Standards Committee determines that there is no evidence of any 
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct officers of Flintshire County 
Council shall notify:

(a) The subject member.

(b) Where the subject member is a member or co-opted member of a 
corporate joint committee and a member of a constituent council of 
the corporate joint committee or a national park authority which is 
required to appoint a member of the corporate joint committee, the 
monitoring officer of the constituent council or national park authority.

(c) The person who made the allegation which led to the investigation.

(d) The Ombudsman.

2.3 If the Standards Committee determines that the subject member should be 
given the opportunity to make representations to the Committee either 
orally or in writing in respect of the findings of the investigation, officers of 
Flintshire County Council shall notify the subject member. They shall ask 
the subject member to confirm if they wish to make representations in 
writing or if they wish to make oral representations at a hearing.

3. The Subject Member’s Response

Page 12



G:3378266v2

3.1 The response from the subject member who is the subject of the 
investigation as to whether they wish to make representations and, if so, 
whether they wish to make representations in writing or to make oral 
representations at a hearing, will be reported to the Standards Committee.

3.2 If the subject member does not wish to make representations or the member 
wishes to make representations in writing only, that will be reported to the 
Standards Committee. The Standards Committee will then consider the 
report from the Ombudsman and, if applicable, any written representations 
from the subject member and shall determine whether there has been a 
breach of the Code of Conduct. If the Standards Committee determines that 
there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct, the Standards Committee 
shall determine whether there should be a sanction and, if so, what that 
sanction should be.

3.3 If the subject member wishes to make oral representations, arrangements 
for a hearing will be made as follows.

4. Arrangements prior to the Hearing

4.1 The report of the Ombudsman’s investigation will be sent to the Standards Committee 
and to the subject member.

4.2 Officers of Flintshire County Council will inform the subject member who is the subject 
of the report will be informed of the need to hold a hearing and the possible sanctions. 
The subject member will be asked to provide information as follows:

(a) Whether they will be represented and, if so, by whom.

(b) Which areas of the Ombudsman’s report (if any) are disputed, with reasons.

(c) Details of any witnesses the subject member intends to call and a summary of 
the evidence that each witness shall give.

(d) The names of any witness to be relied upon by the Ombudsman who they 
would wish to put questions. 

(e) Details of any written evidence on which the subject member intends to rely.

(f) Whether the subject member intends to ask the Standards Committee to 
exclude members of the press and public from any part of the hearing, and the 
reasons for doing so.

(g) Dates when the subject member, their witnesses and representatives would be 
unavailable to attend a hearing.

(h) Whether the subject member is willing for the hearing to be held entirely by 
remote attendance or whether the hearing should take place in person.

(i) Whether the subject member or any witness they intend to call requires the 
hearing to be conducted in Welsh.

(j) Any accessibility requirements of the subject member, their witnesses and 
representatives

Page 13



G:3378266v2

(k) Any other information that the Standards Committee considers it appropriate to 
request.

4.3 Officers of Flintshire County Council will write to the Ombudsman and ask the 
Ombudsman to confirm:

(a) That the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s investigating officer will attend the 
hearing to present the report of the Ombudsman’s investigation.

(b) Whether the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s investigating officer will be 
represented and, if so, by whom.

(c) Details of any witnesses the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s investigating 
officer intends to call and a summary of the evidence they will give.

(d) Dates when the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s investigating officer, their 
witnesses and representatives would be unavailable to attend a hearing.

(e) Any accessibility requirements of the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s 
investigating officer, their witnesses and representatives.

(f) Any other information that the Standards Committee considers it appropriate to 
request.

4.4 Members of the Standards Committee will be asked to provide details of any dates 
when they would be unavailable to attend a hearing. They will also be asked to confirm 
any accessibility requirements.

4.5 Members of the Standards Committee will be asked to confirm if they are ineligible to 
participate in the hearing because:

(a) They have not received training on dealing with allegations of breach of the 
Code of Conduct as required by section 5 of this procedure or

(b) They have a prejudicial interest in the matter to be considered at the hearing.

4.6 A date, time and location for the hearing will be decided by officers of Flintshire County 
Council, and the subject member, the Ombudsman and the Standards Committee will 
be informed of these details.

5. Requirement for Training

5.1 Subject to paragraph 5.2, a member of the Standards Committee will not be eligible to 
participate in a hearing considering a report on an alleged breach of the Code of 
Conduct unless the member has received training provided or approved by Flintshire 
County Council on how to undertake such a hearing and that training was no longer 
ago than four years before the date of the relevant hearing.

5.2 The Standards Committee may decide to waive the requirement for training set out in 
paragraph 5.1 if the Standards Committee considers that it would otherwise be 
impracticable for the Standards Committee to conduct a hearing.

Page 14



G:3378266v2

6. Pre-Hearing Review

6.1 The subject member and the Ombudsman will be asked if they require a pre-hearing 
review. The purpose of any such review will be to consider any practical details which 
need to be addressed in advance of the hearing.

6.2 If the subject member or the Ombudsman request a pre-hearing review, a meeting of 
the Standards Committee will be held for this purpose.

6.3 The Standards Committee may request that a meeting be arranged for the purpose of 
a pre-hearing review if the Committee considers that this would be appropriate, and a 
request has not been made by the subject member or the Ombudsman. In these 
circumstances the subject member and the Ombudsman will be given at least 14 days’ 
notice and they and their representatives may attend the pre-hearing review.

7. Notice of Hearing

7.1 Notice of the hearing will be given in accordance with the statutory requirements 
relating to notice of the Council’s committee meetings.

8. Legal Support

8.1 Flintshire County Council will provide legal and democratic services to the Standards 
Committee for the purpose of dealing with a report from the Ombudsman and 
conducting a hearing.

8.2 The Monitoring Officer will usually provide legal support to the Standards Committee 
but may arrange for another officer of the Council or an external legal adviser to do so.

9. Access to Information

9.1 The Committee will consider whether meetings of the Standards Committee which deal 
with reports on alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct should be held in public or 
private.

9.2 Whilst the Standards Committee will need to take a decision on the merits of each item 
considered at a meeting, having taken account of advice, the Standards Committee 
expects that:

(a) Meetings where the Standards Committee is required to make an initial 
determination in respect of report on an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct 
and pre-hearing review will be held in private. This will be on the basis that 
paragraphs 12 and 18 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 applies and that reports and discussions at such meetings will contain 
information that is exempt from public access because it is information relating 
to a particular individual and because they contain information received in 
confidence.

(b) The hearing to consider an allegation that the subject member has breached 
the code of conduct will be held in public, subject to requests by the 
Ombudsman or subject member for some/all of the hearing to be held in 
private.  A request to hold a hearing or part of a hearing in private will be 
considered on its merits

Page 15



G:3378266v2

9.3 The Standards Committee will apply the test of whether, in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.

9.4 It is expected that, subject to consideration of any exceptional circumstances, the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption would outweigh the public interest in 
disclosing the information because disclosure of details of a report of an investigation 
into a member’s conduct at the preliminary stages of a multi-stage procedure would be 
a disproportionate intrusion into the private life of the member who is the subject of the 
report and could affect the ability of the member to receive a fair hearing.

9.5 If the Standards Committee decides that an exemption from public access applies to 
a report or a meeting the exclusion of the public will include any member of Flintshire 
County Council who is not a member of the Standards Committee.

9.6 In accordance with the constitution of Flintshire County Council, the Standards 
Committee may exclude from a meeting, including a meeting held for the purpose of a 
hearing, any person who interrupts proceedings or who causes a disturbance.

10. Failure of a Party to attend a hearing

10.1 If the subject member or the Ombudsman or Ombudsman’s investigating officer fails 
to attend a hearing of which they have been noted the Standards Committee may:

(a) Make a decision in the absence of the relevant party; or

(b) Adjourn the hearing if the Standards Committee decides that there is a good 
reason for the absence of the relevant party.

11. The Hearing

Preliminary Matters

11.1 A designated waiting area will be made available for witnesses until they are called.

11.2 The Standards Committee will consider any representations as to whether the hearing 
should be considered in private and will reach a determination on this in accordance 
with the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the constitution of Flintshire 
County Council.

11.3 The Chair will introduce those present and explain the procedure to be followed and 
ask everyone present to confirm that they understand.

11.4 Any procedural issues will be addressed.

Determining the facts

11.5 The Standards Committee will consider whether there are any disagreements between 
the Ombudsman and the subject member as to the facts in the Ombudsman’s report.

11.6 If there are no disagreements as to the facts the Standards Committee will consider 
whether the facts demonstrate a breach of the Code of Conduct.

11.7 If there is a disagreement as to the facts the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s 
investigating officer will be invited to make representations to support the relevant 
findings of facts in the Ombudsman’s report. The Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s 

Page 16



G:3378266v2

investigating officer may call witnesses and the subject member and the Standards 
Committee will be allowed to put questions to any such witnesses.

11.8 The subject member will then be invited to make representations to support their 
version of the facts. The subject member may call witnesses and the Ombudsman or 
the Ombudsman’s investigating officer and the Standards Committee will be allowed 
to put questions to any such witnesses.

11.9 At the conclusion of the presentation of the subject member’s case, the Ombudsman 
or the Ombudsman’s investigating officer will be invited to sum up their case as to the 
facts. The subject member will then be invited to sum up their case as to the facts.

11.10 The Standards Committee will consider their decision on the facts in dispute. This part 
of the hearing will not be open to the public. No person other than members of the 
Standards Committee and any officers and advisers who need to be present to provide 
support to the Standards Committee may be present for this part of the hearing.

11.11 The Chair of the Standards Committee will announce the Standards Committee’s 
decision on the facts in dispute.

Whether the facts demonstrate a breach of the Code of Conduct

11.12 The Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s investigating officer will be invited to make 
representations as to whether the facts, as found by the Standards Committee, 
demonstrate a breach of the Code of Conduct.

11.13 The subject member will be invited to make representations as to whether the facts, 
as found by the Standards Committee, demonstrate a breach of the Code of Conduct.

11.14 The Standards Committee will consider their decision as to whether the subject 
member is in breach of the Code of Conduct. This part of the hearing will not be open 
to the public. No person other than members of the Standards Committee and any 
officers and advisers who need to be present to provide support to the Standards 
Committee may be present for this part of the hearing.

11.15 The Chair of the Standards Committee will announce the Standards Committee’s 
decision as to whether the subject member is in breach of the Code of Conduct.

If relevant, deciding a sanction

11.16 If the Standards Committee decides that the subject member breached the Code of 
Conduct, the Standards Committee will ask the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s 
representative if they wish to make any representations as to whether a sanction 
should be imposed and, if so, what that sanction should be.

11.17 The Standards Committee will then invite the subject member to make representations 
and to put forward any evidence which the subject member believes that the Standards 
Committee should consider when making a decision as to whether a sanction should 
be imposed and, if so, what that sanction should be.

11.18 The Standards Committee may put questions to the Ombudsman or the Ombudsman’s 
representative or the member before reaching a decision as to whether a sanction 
should be imposed and, if so, what that sanction should be.

Page 17



G:3378266v2

11.19 The Standards Committee will consider their decision as to whether a sanction should 
be imposed and, if so, what that sanction should be. This part of the hearing will not 
be open to the public. No person other than members of the Standards Committee and 
any officers and advisers who need to be present to provide support to the Standards 
Committee may be present for this part of the hearing.

11.20 The Chair of the Standards Committee will announce the Standards Committee’s 
decision as to sanction,

12. Written Decision

12.1 The Committee will use reasonable endeavours to announce its decisions on the same 
day that the hearing ends. A full written decision with reasons will be issued within 10 
working days of the end of the hearing and notified to the Ombudsman and the subject 
member.

13. Appeals

13.1 If a member is found to have breached the Code of Conduct, that member will have a 
right of appeal to the Adjudication Panel for Wales against the decisions of the 
Standards Committee in accordance with the Local Government Investigations 
(Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 
2001.

14. Report of the outcome of the investigation

14.1 The Standards Committee will arrange for a report on the outcome of an investigation 
into alleged breach of the Code of Conduct to be produced in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers 
and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001.

14.2 The report will be sent to:

(a) The subject member.

(b) The Ombudsman.

(c) The Monitoring Officer of Flintshire County Council.

(d) Where the subject member is a member or co-opted member of a corporate 
joint committee and a member of a constituent council of the corporate joint 
committee or a national park authority which is required to appoint a member 
of the corporate joint committee, to the monitoring officer of the constituent 
council or national park authority.

14.3 The Standards Committee will also take reasonable steps to send a copy of the report 
to the person who made the allegation which led to the investigation.

14.4 After receiving the report the Monitoring Officer of Flintshire County Council will carry 
out the following actions in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government 
Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) 
Regulations 2001:

(a) Publish the report on the Council’s website and make copies available for 
inspection by the public without charge.

Page 18



G:3378266v2

(b) Supply a copy to any person on request if the person making the request pays 
such charge as the Council may reasonably require.

(c) Publish a notice in local newspapers and publicise in such other ways as 
appear to the Monitoring Officer to be appropriate that copies of the report are 
available.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 21

Agenda Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 269

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted - Not for Publication

Page 543

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Adoption of Procedure for dealing with a report referred by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) regarding allegations of breach of a Code of Conduct for Members.
	Enc. 1 for Adoption of Procedure for dealing with a report referred by the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) regarding allegations of breach of a Code of Conduct for Members.

	4 Preliminary matters arising from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) into an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct for Members.
	Enc. 1 for Preliminary matters arising from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) into an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct for Members.
	Enc. 2 for Preliminary matters arising from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) into an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct for Members.
	Enc. 3 for Preliminary matters arising from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) into an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct for Members.
	Enc. 4 for Preliminary matters arising from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) into an alleged breach of the Code of Conduct for Members.


